o Uil

2024957

3005EC. |

)
R2 g |

PROCESSED

MAR 2 § 2002

THOMSON
FINANCIAL

Annual Report




Forward-Looking Statements

Statements made in this annual report which are not historical facts may be considered forward-
locking statements. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual events or results to differ materially from those expressed or implied, PECO )l does
not undertake any cobligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements made
to reflect future events, information or circumstances that arise after the originat filing date of
this annual report. For further information concerning issues that could materially affect finan-
cial performance related to forward-looking statements, please refer to PECO li's Annual Report
on Form 10-K, included as part of this annual report, and periodic filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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Matthew P.Smith
Chairman of the Board & CEQO

Allen Jay Cizner
President & COO

Dear Fellow Shareholders;

Like so many other companies, PECO Il benefited from and grew during
the longest expansion business cycle in recent history. However, the
sudden end of this cycle in 2001 ~ along with the particularly severe
downturn within the communications.marketplace we serve - had a
significant impact on our performance. Sales declined 32 percent to
$106.7 million, from $156.5 million the year before. Our net loss of $0.31
per diluted share for the year is especially disappointing after 29 consecutive
quarters of profitability through March 31, 2001.Nevertheless, we would like
to share with you some of the achievements and actions of the past
year and discuss our short- and long-range objectives so you may
better understand our positioning as we move forward.

Executing our long-term stl",a;tegyzt‘:w.-v

Well before the downturn, we had begun to execute a long-term strategy
to expand PECO I from its t_f’éditiqpal niche as an equipment provider
serving end user companies to a value-added service company focused
on customer relationships. Our existing-primary customers and targeted
new ones have responded »f_a'vd_rabl_,y}'go the shift in our strategy and
have provided significant opportunities for us. Examples include the
awarding of territories (“primary turfs”) by BellSouth in 2001 and our
contract agreements with Qwest in 2000, both of which include a
service-level emphasis. -

Once we are established as a certified service vendor with a
customer, product opportunities can be developed. Qur goal is
to become a relevant tier-one provider of services and systems to the
largest communication service providers. Today, we offer engineering
and installation (E&) services on-site for all major OEM brands. We also
continue to provide total power quality and reliability solutions to these
same customers. Our long-range objective is for E&! services to represent
at least half of our total revenue stream, up from about 36 percent
in 2001 and only 12 percent in 2000. Our acquisition of two service
companies during 2001- Thornton Communications in June and JNB
Communications in August - accompanied by slowdown in demand for
equipment, has positioned us to meet this objective sooner than
anticipated. The service business is stand-alone, product independent,
and growing in its scope of offerings. Recognizing that all service needs
are "local” to the customer, the strategy for us as a service company
is to provide world-class service levels through a full domestic
service presence.
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We were able to accomplish a swift integration of the two acquisitions
whereby our existing internal service group is now managed by the
people of Thornton. We also acquired expertise that takes us into areas of
outside plant, switching and transmission that enhances our experience
base. We will continue our investments both organically and through
strategic acquisitions to meet that strategy.

With service capabilities as a key differentiator, we continue to push our
penetration levels into all four of the remaining Regional Bell Operating
Companies (RBOCs) - organizations that have some of the world’s largest
capital expenditure budgets and comparatively healthy balance
sheets. We believe our capabilities will provide outsourcing opportunities at
the RBOC's despite their reduced spending. We also see significant
opportunity with wireless companies, as deployment of next-generation,
Internet-type information, along with digital voice - commonly called 2.5 and
3G offerings - will require a significant upgrade in infrastructure. We have

* continued to invest in research and development and expanding our sales force
to take full advantage of the opportunities these markets offer,

Cur international strategy also emphasizes service as we look at creating and
acquiring new businesses in markets such as Mexico, Europe, and the
Philippines. While international revenue represented only 1 percent of the
total in 2001, we are actively continuing development activities, including the
formation of a joint venture with a service company in Mexico late in 2001.

Managing from a position of strength

The strength of our team must match the size of our dream, and 2001
brought ongoing changes to our management group. At midyear, Jim Green
stepped down from his long-time position as chairman while remaining
active as a board member. We have benefited from Jim's leadership and
stewardship since our startup, and we thank him for his many contributions
to PECO [l and its predecessor companies.

As part of our transition, Matt assumed the chairmanship while continuing as
CEQ. Al, who joined PECO Il as chief operating officer in January 2000, took on
the additional responsibilities of president. We are very proud of our team, to
which we continue to add depth and breadth, particularly
with the acquired management from our service group. The collective
industry expertise of our executive leadership parallels the Company’s
60-plus years as an independent leader in this business.

|

|
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During the past year, the management group responded decisively to the Diluted Earnings (Loss)
business downturn by making the difficult but necessary decision to reduce Per Share
operations at two manufacturing facilities and to reduce the work force Excluding IPO Stock Charges

by about half to reflect lower product demand. in addition, we
reorganized into teams - requiring product line and support staff relocations
to streamline our processes, reduce costs and increase efficiencies, To
maximize customer satisfaction, we installed a SynQuest advanced planning
system for manufacturing to enhance planning, scheduling and delivery. We
also proceeded with an investment in ProE solid modeling and its related
software tools to increase quality of development, reduce development time
and collaborate more effectively with our supplier base. During the
downturn in manufacturing demand, our associates continue to actively
attack costs through product rationalization and design for manufacturing
activities.We are making strategic investments to change our business model
so when demand retuins, our capacity can more efficiently handle the
growth with healthier margins.

Buiiding on our core competencies |

Within our product offering, our knowledge of systems remains our;fj‘core

competency. Despite changing technologies, the rules for communications

networks have remained largely the same, demanding the highest level of

power quality service and reliability. Within these systems, we also have a

core competency in power distribution - the actual customer connection

point-where our emphasis is on design for ease of installation. We are

maintaining our level of investment in product development to assure our

customers that we have the ability to develop or employ the latest

technofogy. We continue to be an industry leader in our offering of both

digital power systems and enhanced communication capability for ease of Cash Flow ‘
management and control. Our latest 163-modular DC power plant, a system Froviaed by operations
that is scalable, intelligent, serviceable and easy to use, demonstrates the

14
combined efforts of our knowledge. Y

During these challenging times, we are continuing our strategic investments

in intellectual property in our core technology for systems and software. Our

strong balance sheet, with little debt, allows us to continue such 2!
developments to solidify our ability to offer the marketplace “best-of-class” ﬂ ' 54
products and services. We understand our customers’ need to lower their 7 m 9 ()
operating costs, and our development of remote monitoring and 97 98
management systems, combined with our service-level offerings, is aimed at

offering outsourced service agreements that ensure the highest levels of

system reliability.
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Shareholders' 1289 1 S . . . . )
Equity 1245 p «/ / Financial Highlights \
In Millions . L [t Year ending December 31

P k/ ¢ (in thousands except per share data)
’ 2001 2000
ws || Revenues $106,743 $156,548
1ss [— s ’ Cash flow provided by operations $11,422 $336
96 m o Net income (loss), as reported ${6,681) $12,092
- S~ Diluted earnings (loss) per share (1) $(0.28) $0.75
7 % 5 00 0 Diluted earnings (loss) per share, as reperted ${0.31) $0.68
Working capital $81,351 £98,477
Shareholders’ eguity $128,884 $124,880
Shareholders’ equity per commeon share $5.20 $5.97
Backiog $10,520 $24,208

(1) Excludes stock compensation charge related to IPO

While the tragedy of last September 11 produced many true heroes, we are
very proud of the members of our service group in New York, where we have
provided many sophisticated systems to customers over the years to support
our nation’s financial system. Responding to customer needs around the
clock, our team helped get communications operations back online within a
week, earning accolades and formal recognition from Sprint for their efforts.

Shareholders' Shareholder Value

Equity In an effort to increase the return to shareholders, on September 17 the Board

per share 597 sg0 authorized the repurchase of up to 1 million shares of Company stock.
- (_\ Accordingly, the Company invested $1.6 million to purchase 408,000 shares at

an average price of $4.03. The repurchases occurred at a time when the
capital markets were severely and negatively impacted by world events,and our
share price - like many others - set new lows. Our overall equity value, mean-
O while, has grown to $129 million, a 3.2 percent increase over the prior year. Our
} current valuation is equivalent to book value and we believe offers an attractive
investment to value buyers. We will continue to position the Company for

97 98 9% 00 0 growth and encourage investors to consider PECO Il a growth stock. We have
not taken any restructuring fees or special charges during this downturn, which
we believe speaks to management’s effective control of its assets.
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PARTI

ITEM I - BUSINESS

PECO 11, Inc. was organized in 1988 for the purpose of acquiring the assets of ITT’s
communications power product business. 1TT and its predecessors had been designing and manufacturing
communications power systems since 1934. In August 2000, we completed an initial public offering of
5,750,000 of our common shares, resulting in net proceeds to us of $78.3 million. We have made two
strategic acquisitions in 2001 to expand our engineering and installation (E&I) services. In June 2001, we
acquired Thornton Communications and in August 2001, we acquired JNB Communications. Our corporate
offices are located at 1376 State Route 598, Galion, Ohio 44833, and our telephone number is (419) 468-
7600.

We provide E&I on-site services and design, manufacture and market communications power
systems and equipment and offer systems integration products to the communications industry. The products
we offer include power systems, power distribution equipment and systems integration products and related
services. Our E&I on-site services include engineering and installation management, power monitoring
systems, applications software, and customized products to meet customer needs. Our power systems
provide a primary supply of power to support the infrastructure of communications service providers
including local exchange carriers, long distance carriers, wireless service providers, Internet service providers
and broadband access providers. Our power distribution equipment directs this power to specific customer
communications equipment. Our systems integration business provides complete built-to-order. -
communications systems assembled pursuant to customer specifications. e

Market Overview

During 2001, the communications industry experienced a downturn as a result of industry
overcapacity, lower than expected demand, and the excessive debt levels carried by many
telecommunications companies. In addition, a global economic recession has further stalled industry
performance, leading to reduced capital expenditures and other cost cutting measures by many of our
communications industry customers. As a result of the industry downturn and general economic conditions,
our operating results during 2001 were adversely affected. If industry and economic conditions do not
improve, or if these conditions worsen, we may continue to experience adverse effects on our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Prior to the industry downturn discussed above, the communications industry had experienced rapid
change as deregulation and privatization fueled competition and fostered the entry of new competitors. In
addition, advances in technology allowed communications service providers to offer a more varied range of
services. In particular, increasing Internet usage, the emerging demand for broadband services and the
increasing demand for wireless services contributed to the growth in the communications industry. These
technological advances required the continued deployment of new infrastructure, significant upgrades to
existing systems and the continued development of higher performance equipment to meet the demands of
these newly upgraded systems and the customers who utilize them.

Historically, communications power equipment and services were required by a limited number of
telephony service providers. As a result of the changes in the communications industry, however, highly
reliable power equipment is now used by a wide variety of existing and emerging service providers,
including:

= incumbent local exchange carriers, or ILECs, which provided local telephone service on an
exclusive basis prior to deregulation, and include independent local exchange carriers and regional
bell operating companies, or RBOCs;

° competitive local exchange carriers, or CLECs, which, since deregulation, compete with ILECs to
provide local communications service and include broadband service providers that offer a
package of communications services;




o Jong distance telephone service providers;
= Internet service providers that offer access to the Internet;

o backbone providers with high-bandwidth networks capable of transmitting a wide range of
frequencies that other service providers use to transport voice, video and data;

= wireless service providers, including cellular service providers, personal communications
services, or PCS, companies, paging operators and specialized mobile radio operators that offer
wireless communications services similar to cellular; and

o consortium service providers that offer network management, billing and settlement services to
other service providers.

These service providers were, until the recent industry downturn, making substantial capital
expenditures on communications power equipment to build, upgrade and maintain their networks. While we
believe that these service providers will again resume substantial capital expenditures in the long term, we
cannot assure you as to when they will do so or if such expenditures will reach prior levels of capital
expenditures.

Qur Business Strategy

Our objective is to capitalize on the growth in the global market for communications power
equipment by increasing our market share and expanding the services and products we offer. Key elements of
our strategy include: :

o Establish Network of Local Service Centers. We intend to open several local service centers over
the next few years in order to be closer to our increasingly geographically diverse customer base and
to be positioned in the major centers of the communications industry. Service providers demand
rapid response from their equipment suppliers. Being close to our customers helps us to serve them
more efficiently and quickly. This is particularly true with our E&I on-site service business, but it is
also important for our power systems. We believe having the capability to provide installation
services locally is important for our continued expansion. In addition to our two operational centers
in Galion, Ohio; and Nashua, New Hampshire; we have local service centers in Bristol, Tennessee;
Atlanta, Georgia; Dallas, Texas; and Denver, Colorado.

o Expand Service Capabilities. We intend to put additional resources into our service capabilities,
which include monitoring services and software, training and engineering and installation
management. We believe there exists a significant opportunity for us to take on several of the
monitoring and service functions traditionally maintained in-house by our customers.

< Invest in Product Line Expansion. We continue 10 make significant investments in research and
development in order to meet the changing needs of our customers. Our new product development
focuses on improving existing products and developing or employing new high technology products
to address the needs of our customers. In 2001, we developed several new products, including the
163 Power System, a self-contained modular plug and play, expandable, digital power and
distribution solution designed to meet required industry standards.

° Pursue International Growth Opportunities. Historically, our revenue derived from international
activities has not been significant. in 2001 we formed TGS Mexico to address opportunities in
Central America. We anticipate additional opportunities overseas as several of our largest
customers have announced an intention to expand into various international markets.

o Pursue Selective Strategic Acquisitions. We will continue to selectively pursue acquisitions, which
can extend our geographic reach, expand our customer base in the communications sector or
increase the breadth of our product and service offerings.




Our Products 2nd Services

We provide engineering and installation on-site services and manufacture power systems, power
distribution equipment and systems integration products. Sales of our products and services for the past
three years were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2061 2006 1999
- (In millions)
POWET SYSIEIMIS. .. vvveveninanereentecenrasaincnrenrnassarseerannses 546.9 $87.4 $53.2
Power distribution equipment.............cooovieiiiiinieiininn 21.7 49.1 19.9
Engineering and installation services................ccoveerreninn 35.5 85 4.1
Systems integration products..........coieieriieiiiie e 26 11.5 14.8

51067 81565 S8 920




Power Systems. Our approach to designing power systems is to draw from our broad range of power
equipment products in order to custom design fully integrated power systems which meet the configuration
requirements of our customers. A typical power system continuously isolates the end-use equipment from
voltage fluctuations, frequency variations and electrical noise inherent in utility supplied electrical power and,
if this power is interrupted, provides clean, stable, backup direct current, or DC power. Our line of high
quality power products, which range in price from several hundred dollars to over $100,000, incorporates
leading technologies and includes the following products, which are often combined to configure a complete

power systen:

Preduct Category

Power Plants

Purpose

Manage, monitor, protect, distribute
and store energy in rechargeable
batteries to be used in the event of an
alternating current, or AC, input
failure.

Range of Products

Over 16 models engineered for use in a wide
number of applications, including central office,
cellular, fiber optic, microwave carrier systems,
mobile radio, private branch exchanges, local
and wide area networks and Internet systems.
Capacities range from 3 to 10,000 Amperes.

Rectifiers

Convert incoming AC power to DC
power.

Over 18 models including rectifiers designed for
larger applications as well as compact “hot
swappable” modular switchmode rectifiers
designed to be added or replaced without
powering down the system.

Power distribution

Directs or distributes pawer from a

We offer a wide range of products ranging from

equipment centralized power plant to various large battery distribution fuse boards, which

loads or end uses. provide intermediate distribution in applications
where large power feeds from a power plant
need to be split into smaller distributions, to
smaller distribution circuits cabled directly to
the load. The family includes several products
designed specifically for the co-location market.

Converters Convert one DC voltage to one ot Over nine models providing DC output voltages
more different DC voltages. ranging from 12V to 130V converted from DC

input voltages of 24 and 48 VDC.

Converter plants Manage, monitor, protect and Over six-system models available utilizing
distribute various DC voltages from  modular converter that provide 48V-12V, 24V-
an integrated converter system. 48V, 48V-24V and 48V-130V conversions.

Inverters Convert power from a DC to AC Over 15 models, including 1,000 watt to 15,000~
power suitable for end-use watt modular “hot swappable” and “redundant”
applications. systems and 500 watt to 40,000 watt fixed

capacity inverters.

Ringing systems Generate tones and ringing power Over seven models for a variety of applications,

from a DC plant.

whick need redundant ring and tone power.

Power Distribution Equipment. Power distribution equipment is a component of a power system, but
we also offer this equipment as a separate product line. Effective distribution of power is becoming
increasingly important as recent regulatory changes require large established service providers to permit
emerging communications service providers to operate, or co-locate, on their premises. As part of this co-
location requirement, established service providers must provide power to emerging communications service
providers. We offer a wide variety of power distribution equipment to direct power from the host carrier’s
power plant to accomplish this task.




Engineering and Installation. We offer a broad range of services that complement our product
offerings. Through our E&I management services we design, manufacture and install power systems to meet
a customer’s specific needs. The acquisitions of Thornton Communications provides added E&I experience
with switching and transmission equipment. We believe that we offer one of the best product support
programs in the industry, including:

= contract engineering, installation, and turnkey E&I project services;
o on-site repair by field service technicians, as well as quick turnarcund for off-site repairs;

< supply of new or refurbished equipment for use during product repairs or in the event of
unexpected requirements;

o 24 hour, on-call service every day of the year;

- customer training at the project site or our regional operational and service facilities to help our
customers use our products in the most efficient manner;

° preventative maintenance program assistance; and
* a two-year warranty on all of our products.

As a complement to our line of standard power products, we offer power equipment monitoring
systems including the MACS™ family of monitor, alarm and control systems. These systems allow
customers to monitor and control their power systems from a remote location, The newest member of the
family is the NetMACS™, which is delivered to the customer network-ready and features embedded web
pages that may be accessed by a standard web browser. Gur PowerPro™ site data and management and
monitoring system software provides the customer with a comprehensive data base of its equipment and
allows the user to collect data from sites equipped with remote monitors. The PowerPro software is used by
customers to provide real-time readings of equipment in the field, and allows the customer to better manage
its infrastructure. ;

Systems Integration Products. We believe we have substantial opportunities to capitalize on the
trend toward outsourcing in the communications industry and to continue to grow our systems integration
business. We enable service providers to focus on their core competencies by offering services including
equipment procurement, inventory management and systems design assistance.

The market for outsourced systems integration products is highly fragmented with no significant
barriers to the entry of new competitors. In addition to competition from the many systems integration
contractors in the market, the level of systems integration net sales will be subject to fluctuations based on
customers’ decisions concerning outsourcing their systems integration work.

Marketing and Sales

In 2001, approximately 95% of our domestic sales were made through our nationwide sales force.
The remainder of our domestic sales were made to contractors hired to provide their customers with turnkey
power plants and to distributors providing warehouse functions for some of our largest customers. Our
domestic sales efforts are divided among 11 regional territories covering the entire United States. Our
international sales efforts are primarily managed through distributors and resellers. In 2001, approximately
1% of our total sales came from international customers. As of December 31, 2001, our sales and marketing
force consisted of a total of 66 employees worldwide.

Our sales force and service delivery organization is deployed geographically across the United
States. They work in teams to serve targeted key national customers and global customers. The key
customers are served locally while managed on a coordinated national basis. We believe this allows us to
better address the strategic demands of the customer which provides us with an advantage over many of our
competitors,




In order to sell equipment to a service provider in the regulated communications industry, it is often
necessary to be an approved vendor to that service provider. A service provider typically has two or three
approved vendors for the types of products we sell. Qur sales efforts are directed toward expanding the
products and services we provide to our existing customers as well as seeking approved vendor status from
additional service providers.

Our marketing effort focuses on enhancing market awareness of our products through industry trade
shows, sales presentations, brochures, CD-ROM catalogs, an informative web site and advertisements in
communications industry publications. We also provide customer and contractor training both on-site and at
our Galion and Worthington, Ghio, and Bristol, Tennessee facilities, which we believe, helps us to generate
customer loyalty and maintain close customer relationships. We believe our reputation for quality, service,
technological innovation and fulfilling our customer’s unique needs gives us an opportunity to further build
and enhance our brand recognition.

Customers

Our customers include regional bell operating companies, local exchange carriers, wireless service
providers, Internet service providers, broadband service providers, private network operators, distributors,
contractors and other service providers, In 2001 and 2000, our top ten customers accounted for 77% and 75%
of our net sales, respectively. In 2001, three customers, Sprint, Nextel, and Level 3 Communications,
accounted for 29%, 15%, and 10% of our net sales, respectively.

Substantially all of our customer contracts simply provide a framework for subsequent purchase
orders and set the price of our products and services. They do not obligate a customer to purchase any
amount of our products or services. These contracts typically have a term of one to two years and are not
automatically renewable by their terms.

Backlog

As of December 31, 2001, the unshipped customer backlog totaled $10.5 million, compared to $24.2
million as of December 31, 2000. All of the December 31, 2001 backlog is expected to be shipped in 2002.
Customers may cancel orders at any time.

Manufacturing and Quality Control

We strive to deliver our products on time and defect-free, using processes that are designed with
employee involvement and focused manufacturing cell principles. Our facilities in Galion, Ohio and Nashua,
New Hampshire are 1ISO 9001 certified for quality assurance in design and manufacturing. Because of our
focus on providing customized power systems, many of our products and systems are built-to-order. All of
our manufacturing and assembly facilities are linked together by a central information system allowing us to
draw upon the collective expertise of our engineering and manufacturing personnel and to more efficiently
use our resources. We manufacture the majority of our product line and we currently outsource less than 5%
of our product offerings.

Many of our customers and other end-users increasingly require that their power supplies meet or
exceed established international safety and quality standards as their operations expand internationally. In
response to this need, we design and manufacture power supplies in accordance with the certification
requirements of many international agencies and certifying bodies, including the Underwriters Laboratories,
Canadian Safety Agency, European Conformity and the Network Equipment Building Standard.

Quality products and responsiveness to the customer’s needs are critical to our ability to compete
successfully. Given their importance, we emphasize quality and reliability in both the design and manufacture
of our products. We manufacture and assemble our products primarily at two regional operational centers
located in Galion, Ohio and Nashua, New Hampshire. In order to maintain our focus as we expand and
penetrate new international markets, we may open operational centers in appropriate locations.




Research, Development and Engineering

We invest significant resources in research and development and applications engineering. In 2001,
our research, development and engineering expense was $11.2 milfion, or 10.5% of net sales; in 2000, it was
$9 .6 million, or 6.1% of net sales; and in 1999 it was $9.9 million, or 10.8% of net sales. As of December 31,
2001, we had 96 full-time employees in our research, development and engineering department.

Patents and Trademarks

We use a combination of patents, trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights and nondisclosure
agreements to protect our proprietary rights. Currently, we have seven patents issued in the United States and
three patent applications pending. Of the patents issued, two protect technology related to the development of
our valve regulated lead acid battery management system, or VMS, and both expire on May 29, 2016, and
two protect technology related to the development of our new rectifier module and expire on October 4,
2017 and January 26, 2018, respectively. The remaining three patents issued pratect technology related to
our inverter module and expires at various times through the year 2019. We also pursue limited patent
protection outside the United States. We do not believe any of our existing or pending patents are material to
our business.

We cannot assure that any new patents will be issued, that we will continue to develop proprietary
products or technologies that are patentable, that any issued patent will provide us with any competitive
advantages or will not be challenged by third parties or that the patents of others will not have a: materla]
adverse effect on our business and operating results. :

We have filed a trademark application with the United States:Department of Commerce Patent and
Trademark Office for the registration of the trademark ‘‘PECO I1.”” The PECO Energy Company has filed a
notice of opposition to our registration of the trademark. In response to PECO Energy’s notice of opposition
to our trademark registration, we initiated a cancellation proceeding on one of PECO Energy’s marks. The
matter is now before the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board. We have been using the mark ¢‘PECQ II"” for
over thirteen years, the products and services we provide are different than those offered by PECO Energy, an
electric utility, and we sell to a sophisticated group of customers. Notwithstanding our historic uise of the
PECO II mark, PECO Energy may institute an action in federal court seeking to prevent our usé.of the mark
PECO Il and to obtain damages for trademark infringement. If PECO Energy was successful in‘preventing
our use of the name and mark PECO {I, we would incur substantial expenses in order to change our name and
develop a new trademark, and would lose substantial goodwill. In addition, a court could award damages and
reasonable attorneys’ fees to PECO Energy as part of its relief.

Suppliers and Raw Materials

The raw materials used in our business consist mainly of commodities including aluminum and
copper, and electrical components like circuit breakers and capacitors. Copper, one of our basic raw
materials, has a history of price volatility, If the price of copper were to rise significantly in the future, many
of our contracts permit us to adjust the price of our products to recover all or 2 portion of our increased costs.

Competition

The market for our equipment and service offerings is highly competitive. Competition in the market
is based on price, quality, technological capabilities and the ability to respond to customer delivery schedules.
We have been able to use our ability to customize systems to meet customer needs to reduce somewhat the
effect of pricing pressures on our business. We also invest significantly in research, development and
engineering in order to meet the market’s demand for products incorporating latest technology. We have also
invested in adding manufacturing capacity and personnel in order to meet customer delivery schedules.

We believe that the trends toward greater demand for communications services, increasing global
deregulation and rapid technology advancements, characterized by shortened product lifecycles, will continue
to drive competition in our industry for the foreseeable future. These developments have resulted in frequent
changes to our group of competitors. In addition, as demand for infrastructure equipment for the
communications industry increases, we believe significant competitive factors will include the following:




s ability to deliver products and systems in a timely manner;

s ability to meet the growing demand for fully customized power and integrated communications
systems;

"« ability to provide products and systems with state of the art technology;
> ability to provide product independent engineering and installation services; and
« ability to provide local staging and systems integration products,

We currently face competition primarily from the two largest competitors in our market, Tyco
International Ltd. and Marconi Communications.

An additional dimension to the competition we face is the entry of AC power system manufacturers
into our market. We manufacture and market DC power systems. DC power has traditionally been used in
applications where reliability is paramount. For example, telephone service providers atmost exclusively rely
on DC power. Historically, DC power system suppliers did not compete with AC power system suppliers.
However, as consumers increasingly rely on service providers offering bundled communication services, the
demand for reliable DC power has increased. This increase in demand for DC power has caused, and is likely
to continue to cause, AC power suppliers to enter into the DC power market. Many of these AC power
suppliers have significantly greater financial and other resources than we do.

In our industry it is often necessary to be on a service provider’s approved vendor list in order to sell
equipment to that service provider, and most service providers typically have only two or three approved
vendors for each type of product or service they purchase. Our competitiveness will depend on our-
maintaining approved vendor status with existing customers, as well as obtaining approved vendor status for
additional service providers. We face the additional risk that even if we do obtain approved vendor status, our
customers may make the strategic decision to manufacture the equipment they require themselves,

The market for outsourced systems integration products is highly fragmented. While most of these
competitors are smaller contractors that are unable to serve customers beyond a limited geographic area, there
are a few larger competitors that have the capability of serving a more geographically diverse customer base.
In addition to these competitors, some larger vertically integrated communications service providers and
major equipment manufacturers continue to assemble, wire and test their own infrastructure equipment.

Competition in the market for outsourced systems integration products is based on an ability to
respond to customer delivery schedules and price. We believe that our geographic base enables us to be closer
to our customers than many of our competitors and assists us in quickly responding to customer demands.

Ernvironmental Matters

We are subject to comprehensive and changing foreign, federal, state and local environmental
requirements, including those governing discharges to the air and water, the handling and disposal of solid
and hazardous wastes and the remediation of contamination associated with releases of hazardous substances.
We believe that we are in compliance with current environmental requirements. Nevertheless, we use
hazardous substances in our operations and as is the case with manufacturers in general, if a release of
hazardous substances occur on or from our properties, we may be held liable and may be required to pay the
cost of remedying the condition. The amount of any resulting liability could be material.

Employees
As of December 31, 2001, we had 1,110 full-time employees. We consider our employee relations

to be good. None of our employees is represented by a labor organization. We have not experienced
employment related work stoppages.
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ITEM 2 - PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth certain information about our principal facilities:

. Approximate '
Location Square Feet Uses Owaned/Leased
Galion, Ohi0...coceeciiininninnn 391,000 Principal executive and corporate . Owned
: office, sales and service office and

manufacturing and assembly

Denver, Colorado.................. , 162,000 Engineering and installation Ovwmned

' services and sales office

Nashua, New Hampshire.......... 130,000 Sales office and light Owned
manufacturing and assembly

Dallas, TEXBS.cvcvverererrireens 110,000 Engineering and installation . Owned
services and sales office '

Worthington, Ohio.......... e 24,000 Research and development, and Owned
training

Bristol, Tennessee................. 22,800 Engineering and installation Leased
services

Atlanta, Georgia................... 14,430 Engineering and installation. Leased
services

We also lease sales and service offices in or near the following cities: &1ington, Texas; Kansas City, Kansas;
Los Angeles, California; Milwaukee, Wisconsin; Harrisburg, Pennsylvania; and Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
Cur Nashua and Dallas facilities were financed with industrial revenue bonds. We believe that we have
excess capacity for our current operations and we are attempting to sublease a portion of our facilities in
Nashua, Dallas and Denver.

ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Corporation is a party to several legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course
of business. Although the outcome of such items cannot be determined with certainty, management is of the
opinion that the final outcome of these matters should not have a material effect on the corporation’s results
of operations or financial position. ’

ITEM 4 - SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None

ITEM 4A - EXRCUTIVE OFFICERS
Set forth below is certain information conceming our executive officers:

Name Age Position

Matthew P. Smith................. 48  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

AllenJay Cizner..................ceceeeee 58  President and Chief Operating Officer

JohnC. Maag...........ccoovviiiinnnnnn, 52 Chief Financial Officer

Sandra A. Frankhouse.................... 53 Secretary and Treasurer

Randolph C. Lumb................. 59  Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing
11




The following is a biographical summary of the business experience of our executive officers:

Matthew P. Smith has been employed by PECO 1l since 1989, and in June 2001 Matt was appointed
Chairman of the Board and continues as Chief Executive Officer. He served as our President and Chief
Executive Officer since 1998. From 1996 to 1998, he served as Secretary, Treasurer and Executive Vice
President, From 1991 to 1998, he served as Secretary and Treasurer, and from 1990 to 1998, Mr. Smith
served as Treasurer. Mr. Smith has been one of our directors since 1994, He holds a B.S. in mechanical
engineering from Purdue University.

Allen Jay Cizner joined PECO II in January 2000 as Chief Operating Officer. From 1993 until
January 2000, Mr. Cizner was a principal in Cizner & Associates, Inc., a consulting business concentrating on
strategic and operational assignments for health care, technology, not for profit organizations and new
venture development. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Cizner was a partner in CG], Inc., an international trade and
investment management company focused on opportunities in Eastern Europe. Mr. Cizner holds an M.B.A,
an M.S. in industrial engineering and an M.S. and E.E. in electrical engineering from New York University.

John C. Maag joined PECO 1! in February 2000 as Chief Financial Officer. From 1995 until
February 2000, Mr. Maag served as Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of LeCroy Corporation, a manufacturer of digital oscilloscopes. Mr, Maag
holds a B.S. in accounting from St. Joseph’s College and is a C.P.A.

Sandra A. Frankhouse has been employed by PECO Il since 1989, and has served as our Treasurer
since 1998 and as our Secretary since 1999. From 1996 to 1998, she served as Vice President and Controller.
From 1995 to 1996, she served as Director of Accounting. Ms. Frankhouse holds a B.S. in education from
Central Michigan University, and a B.S. in business management from Ashland University, and is.a C.P.A.

Randolph C. Lumb joined PECO 1! in December 2000 as Executive Vice President of Sales and
Marketing. During 2000, Mr. Lumb was Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing at VCampus
Corporation, an electronic leaming solutions provider, in Reston, Virginia. From 1997 to 2000, he was
Director of Business Development at Keane, Inc., an electronic business and information technology services
firm. From 1995-1998, Mr. Lumb was a principal in Infrastructures, Inc., a consulting business, Mr. Lumb
holds B.S. and M.S. degrees from Mississippi State University.

PART II

ITEM § - MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S CCMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Qur, common shares have been traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “PIII” since
our initial public offering on August 18, 2000. The high and low sales prices for our common shares reported
on the Nasdaq National Market for each of the quarters since the date of our initial public offering are set
forth in the table below:

2001 High Low
FItst QUaTTET ..o e $25.750 §9.750
SECONA QUAITET. .. .. it iee it eit e er e vt e e et e et r e e e eneaanas $12.440 $6.000
Third QUAITEr........uiiiiiriiiiier et e e s e e e e e e e s $8.590 $2.960
FOUMI QUAMET. ...+ eee e eeeeeeeeseeeeeeses e eeseeeresee s enereeeeee e $6.440  $3.810
2000 (1)

Third QUArET (2)... . cv e e $47.500 $19.875

Fourth QUAITET. .. .. ittt et e e ettt e s et rte e eie e e renaaes $46.625 £12.000

(1) Our common shares did not trade publicly in the first half of 2000.
(2) From August 17, 2000, the effective date of our initial public offering.

As of February 1, 2002, there were 686 holders of record of our common shares.
We did not pay dividends in 2000 or 2001. We do not cwrrently plan to pay dividends. Any future

determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of the board of directors and will depend upon our
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financial condition, operating results, capital requirements and other factors the board of directors deems
relevant. Our current loan agreement restricts our ability to pay cash dividends of more than $100,000 in any
fiscal year.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we sold unregistered securities in the amount, at the times and for
the aggregate amount of consideration as listed below. The securities were sold to purchasers directly by us
and the sales did not involve any underwriter.

From Cctober 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001, certain of our employees and directors exercised
options to purchase 2,500 common shares for an aggregate consideration of $6,550. The options exercised
were issued under compensatory benefit plans in a transaction exempt under Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Rule 701 under the Securities Act of 1933,

Of the 2,500 common shares issued to employees from October 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001 from
the exercise of options, options to purchase 750 common shares were granted on July 13, 1998, and options
to purchase 1,750 common shares were granted on July 22, 1999.

Use of Proceeds

On August 17, 2000, the SEC declared effective a Registratiop-‘Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-37566) filed by us in connection with an initial public offering of our common shares.

From the date of receipt of the proceeds through December 31 2001, of the $78.3 million in net
proceeds, $14.4 million was used to repay bank indebtedness, $5.2 million was used in connection with the
acquisitions of Thornton Communications and JNB Communications, $15.3 million was used for capital
expenditures, excluding the purchase of the Denver regional service center in February 2001 which is being
financed through industrial revenue bonds, and the remainder for general working capital purposes. The
remaining net proceeds have been invested in short-term, interest-bearing investment grade securities or
guaranteed obligations of the U.S. government,




ITEM 6 - SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

This selected data in this section should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, the consolidated financial statements and notes to
consolidated financial statements. We derived the statement of operations data for the five years ended
December 31, 2001 and balance sheet data as of December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997 from the
audited financial statements.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1995 1958 = 1997
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net Sales. .vevnviiiriieir e e e $106,743 $156,548  $92,049  $57,801 $48,340
Cost of goods s0Id......ovvviiiriniiii 88.365 109.366 65,671 39,226 32.813
GrOSS MAFZIN..ovuvivenenirieneriiniir b res et e s e, 18,378 47,182 26,378 18,575 15,527
Operating expenses::
Research, development and engineering.................. 11,218 9,608 9,919 5,416 4,499
Selling, general and administrative. ...........coe e, 18,836 17,160 16,557 6,768 5,230
30,054 26,768 26,476 12,184 9,729
Income (loss) from operations.............cccivevenienninninon (11,676) 20,414 (98) 6,391 5,798
Interest income (expense), Net.........coovveevieieniniiininnn, 1,300 (164) (818) (276) (276)
Income (Joss) before iNCOME tAXES. ..o vvveeerirerven crreennn, (10,376) 20,250 (916) 6,115 5,522
Provision (benefit) for income taxes.............oevviiiininee (3,695) 8,158 (364) 2,354 2,083
Net income (I058)..vevvneeervenrivriverenennsereneeris e 3(6,681) $12,092 $(552) $3,761 $3,439
Net income (loss) per common share:
BaSIC. . evteritieiniriaereeir et craara e et arn e e $(0.31) $0.72 $(0.04) $0.28 $0.27
) ~ %031 $0.68 $(0.04) $0.25 $0.27
21,579 16,908 13,900 13,521 12,890
21,579 17,876 13,900 14,765 12,890
December 31,
2001 2000 1989 1998 1597
(i thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital ..........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $81,351 398,477 $24,329 $10,487 $5,300
TOtAl ASSEIS..uveineeriienrinieieranerrnreerteraneeeaetsenaros 160,168 154,146 68,798 32,088 22,698
Total long-term liabilities. ......o.cvveiiiiiiiiinnn i, 10,433 4,941 21,194 5,653 1,274
Total shareholders’ equity.........cccooviniiiiiinin i 128,884 124,880 27,538 15,531 9,611
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ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read this discussion together with the consolidated financial statements and other
financial information elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Overview

We provide E&!I on-site services and design, produce, manufacture and market a broad line of power
systems and equipment for the communications industry. Our products and services are used by
communication access providers in the local exchange, long distance, wireless, Internet and broadband
communications markets.

PECO 11, Inc. was formed by management in May 1988. In December 1988, we purchased certain
assets of the Power Equipment division of ITT, including the Galion, Ohio manufacturing facility and
surrounding land, machinery, product designs and other business property. The ITT Power Equipment
division, and its predecessors, had been engaged in the manufacturing and sale of power equipment for the
communications industry since 1934, including continuous operations at the Galion manufacturing facility
from 1955 through 1988, just prior to our acquisition.

Our operating results during 2001 were adversely affected by the downturn in the communications
industry and by the global economic recession. In this depressed industry and general economic
environment, many of our customers have deferred capital spendmg, reduced their equipment purchases and
announced plans to further reduce their capital expenditures in 2002. As a result, we expect that our future
net sales will not grow at rates experienced prior to 2001. If industry or economic conditions do not improve,
or if they worsen, we may continue to experience adverse effects on our business, operating results and
financial condition.

During 2001, we placed a strong emphasis on growing our engineering and installation services,
acquiring Thornton Communications and JNB Communications. Revenues from engineering and installation
services have helped to offset the decreased demand for our power systems and power distribution and
systems integration products in 2001, In addition to growing our engineering and installation services, we
also took actions during 2001 to align operating costs with reduced revenues, We reduced our work force on
two separate occasions during the year, and reorganized the company into business teams to streamline our
processes, reduce costs and increase efficiencies. We also installed new software to enhance manufacturing
planning, scheduling and delivery, and to improve the quality and timing of our new product development.
We are continuing to make strategic investments so that when demand returns, which we believe it w1ll our
capacity can move with it while margins remain healthy.

Critical Accounting Policies

In response to the SEC’s Release No. 33-8040, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure about
Critical Accounting Policies”, we consider certain accounting policies related to revenue recognition,
inventory valuation and impairment of long lived assets to be critical policies due to the estimation processes
involved in each, We state these accounting policies on the notes to the consolidated financial statements and
at relevant sections in this discussion and analysis.

15




Results of Operations

The following table shows, for the periods indicated, selected items from our consolidated statement
of operations, as a percentage of net sales:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2000 1999
NEESAIES. .. .etiitiieiereeree e et et i 100.6% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods s0ld........o.oviiiiviiniiiiiii o 828 69.9 71.3
GFOSS MAMZIN. .cvuveneniiie e ve e e e v 17.2 30.1 28.7
Operating expenses:
Research, development and engineering.............. 10.5 6.1 10.8
Selling, general and administrative...........ccceeee.. 176 11.0 18.0
28.1 17.1 28.8
Income (loss) from operations................ovvveennne (10.9) 13.0 ©.n
Interest income (eXpense), net ........coveviiinininennn 12 0.1) 0.9
Income (loss) before income taxes....................... 9.7 129 (1.0)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes..................... (3.4 5.2 (0.4)
Net income (1088). .. vvvevereeieriiiieeeiiiee e (6.3)% 7.7% (0.6)%

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000

Net Sales. Net sales declined $49.8 million, or 32%, to $106.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 from $156.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. This decline was primarily
due to, as discussed above, the industry downturn and depressed economic conditions in 2001 which resulted
in the decreased demand for power systems, power distribution equipment and systems integration, which
was offset partially by increased demand for engineering and installation on-site services, largely due to our
acquisitions of Thornton Communications and JNB Communications, As of December 31, 2001, our sales
backlog, which represents total dollar volume of firm sales orders not yet recognized as revenue; had declined
to $10.5 million from $24.2 million at December 31, 2000. ,

Gross Margin. Gross margin dollars declined $28.8 million to $18.4 million in 2001 as compared to
$47.2 million in 2000. Gross margin as a percentage of net sales declined to 17.2% in 2001 compared to
30.1% in 2000. The margin percentage was lower in 2001 due primarily to unabsorbed overhead costs
attributable to lower volume and incremental costs related to the added production facility in Galion in March
2001.

Research, Development and Engineering. Research, development and engineering expense increased
to $11.2 million in 2001 from $9.6 million in 2000, representing an increase of $1.6 million. The increase
relates to the continued development of new products. As a percentage of net sales, research, development
and engineering expense increased to 10.5% in 2001 from 6.1% in 2000.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased to $18.8
million in 2001 from $17.2 million in 2000, representing an increase of $1.6 million. The increase resulted
from an expansion of our international and field sales forces, the expanding of administrative and sales staffs
in our E&I service centers, and amortization costs related to acquisitions. These increases were offset by a
$1.0 miltion decrease in stock compensation expense between years. As a percentage of net sales, selling,
general and administrative expense increased to 17.6% in 2001 from 11.0% in 2000.

Interest Income. Interest income, net, was $1.3 million in 2001 compared to net interest expense of
$0.2 million in 2000. The increase in interest income, net, in the current year is due primarily to reduced
levels of debt, which were paid down from funds received in August 2000 from the initial public offering and
interest income from the excess cash proceeds.
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Income Taxes. As aresult of our operating losses in 2001, our effective benefit income tax rate was
35.6% in 2001 from a provision 40.3% in 2000. The benefit rate was lower in 2001 due to certain states not
allowing for net operating loss carryforwards.

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net Sales. Net sales increased $64.5 million, or 70%, to $156.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2600 from $92.0 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. This increase was primarily
the result of unit volume increases due to increased demand for our products and services. As of December
31, 2000, our sales backlog, which represents total dollar volume of firm sales orders not yet recogmzed as
revenue, had increased to $24.2 million from $23.7 million at December 31, 1999.

Gross Margin. Gross margin dollars increased $20.8 million to $47.2 million in 2000 as compared to
$26.4 miilion in 1999. Gross margin as a percentage of net sales increased to 30.1% in 2000 compared to
28.7% in 1999. The margin percentage was lower in 1999 due to an additional $4.0 million in stock
compensation costs compared to 2000. Also, the manufacturing expansion at the Nashua and Dallas
operating centers in the latter part of 1999 contributed to higher operating costs in 2000.

Research, Development and Engineering. Research, development and engineering expense
decreased to $9.6 million in 2000 from $9.9 million in 1999, representing a decrease of $0.3 million. The
decrease in research, development and engineering expense was due to a reduction of stock compensation
costs from $3.0 million in 1999 to $0.5 million in 2000. The reduction was offset by an increase in costs in
comnection with continued development of new products. As a percentage of net sales, research,
development and engineering expense declined to 6.1% in 2000 from 10.8% in 1999.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased to $17.2
million in 2000 from $16.6 million in 1999, representing an increase of $0.6 million. The increase resulted
from an expansion of our international and field sales forces, an increase in direct selling expenses which are
proportionate to sales, and the addition of administrative staff throughout 2000 due to growth at all locations.
Total selling, general and administrative head count rose 22% in 2000:tp 242 associates. These increases
were offset by a $5.0 million decrease in stock compensation expense between years. As a percentage of net
sales, selling, general and administrative expense declined to 11.0% in'2000 from 18.0% in 1999,

Interest Expense. Interest expense, net declined to $0.2 million in 2000 from $0.8 million in 1999,
The decrease in the current year is due primarily to reduced levels of debt, which were paid down from funds
received in August 2000 from the initial public offering and interest income from the excess cash proceeds.

Income Taxes. Qur effective income tax rate increased marginally to 40.3% in 2000 from 39.7% in
1999, :

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Cur primary liquidity needs are for working capital, capital expenditures, and strategic acquisitions.
In August 2000 we completed an initial public offering of 5.75 million common shares at $15.00 per share,
generating net proceeds of approximately $78.3 million. A portion of these net proceeds were used to reduce
bank indebtedness. At December 31, 2001, readily convertible cash equivalents approximated $37.9 million.

Working capital was $81.4 million at December 31, 2001, which represented a working capital ratio
of 4.9 to 1, compared to $98.5 million, or 5.0 to 1, at December 31, 2000. Our investment in inventories and
accounts receivables was $43.2 million, $63.9 million and $41.8 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. Our capital expenditures were $17.3 million, $9.1 million and $9.4 million in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively. We have reduced our budgeted capital expenditures to $10 million in 2002 due to
continuing lower than expected business volume.

Cash flows provided by operating activities were $11.4 million in 2001, an improvement of $10.9
million in comparison with 2000, due primarily to lower levels of accounts receivable resulting from
improved collections and a decline in sales volume and inventory declines offset by lower operating margins
and a decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses due to the lower business level,
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In August 2001 we entered into adjustable rate industrial revenue bonds for $6.5 million from the
County of Arapahoe, Colorado in connection with the opening of our Denver service center. The $2 million
Series A Bonds bear interest at 1.9% at December 31, 2001. The $4.5 million Series B Bonds bear interest at
- 2.15% at December 31, 2001

In September 2001 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 1 million of our
common shares in the open market or in private transactions. To date we have purchased 408,006 shares at a
cost of $1.64 million.

As of December 31, 2001, there were no borrowings on our unsecured $20 million loan agreement.
At December 31, 2001, we complied with or obtained waivers for the covenants under the borrowing
agreement.

We do not currently plan to pay dividends, but rather to retain earnings for use in the operation of
our business and to fund future growth.

We will continue to spend amounts of capital on property and equipment related to the expansion of
our corporate headquarters, and equipment and research, development and engineering costs to support our
growth. In addition we will expend cash funds to acquire selective strategic acquisitions to increase our
product and service offerings. Our current credit agreement prohibits us from making any acquisitions
without the consent of our lender.

We believe that cash and cash equivalents, anticipated cash flow from operations and our credit
facilities will be sufficient to fund our working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the
next 24 months.

Recent Accsunting Proncuncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), **Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”’ SFAS
133 establishes new standards of accounting and reporting for derivative instruments and hedging activities.
SFAS 133 requires that all derivatives be recognized at fair value in the balance sheet, and the corresponding
gains or losses be reported either in the statement of operations or as a component of comprehensive income,
depending on the type of hedging relationship that exists. SFAS 133 was adopted by the Company on
January 1, 2001. We did not hold derivative instruments or engage in hedging activities during 2001.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 141 (SFAS 141), “Business Combinations” and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” The statements are effective for us on January 1, 2002. These statements will result in
modifications relative to our accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets. Specifically, we will cease
goodwill and certain intangible asset amortization beginning Januvary 1, 2002. Additionally, intangible assets
inchuding goodwill will be subjected to new impairment testing criteria. Impairment charges, if any,
associated with goodwill will have to be recognized by the fourth quarter of 2002.  Other than the cessation
of intangible asset amortization, we have not determined the impact of adoption on our financial statements.
The current annual run rate of amortization expense approximates $1.3 million.

ITEM 7A - QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and, to a lesser extent, foreign currency
fluctuations. We have not entered into interest rate or foreign currency transactions for speculative purposes
or otherwise. Our foreign currency exposures were immaterial as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Our primary interest rate risk exposure results from our revolving loan facility. If interest rates
were to increase 100 basis points (1%) from December 31, 2001 rates, and assuming no changes in long-term
debt from the December 31, 2001 levels, the additional annual expense to us would be immaterial to our
results of operations. We currently do not hedge our exposure to floating interest rate risk.
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Forward-Looking Statements

We are making this statement in order to satisfy the “safe harbor” provisions contained in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements relating to
our business. Forward-looking statements contained herein or in other statements made by us are made based
on our management’s expectations and beliefs concerning future events impacting us and are subject to
uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment, all of which are difficult to
predict and many of which are beyond our control, that could cause our actual results to differ materially
from those matters expressed or implied by forward-looking statements. We believe that the following
factors, among others, could affect our future performance and cause our actual results to differ materially
from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf:

o general economic, business and market conditions;

e  competition;

e decreases in spending by our communications industry customers;

s the loss of a major customer or customers;

e our ability to identify, consummate and integrate the operations of suitable acquisition targets;

¢ the impact of changing global, political and economic conditions;

s our ability to expand our international operations;

» our relations with our employees;

e our ability to meet the high standards of quality and reliability that communications service
providers expect from communications equipment suppliers;

e variability in our operating results;
e our ability to attract and retain key personnel;

e our ability to keep up with the rapid technological changes, evolving industry standards,
changing customer needs and frequent new equipment and service introductions in the
communications industry; and 7

» our ability to protect our proprietary information.
p proprietary
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of PECO I1, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PECO 1I, Inc. as of December
31,2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statermnents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of PECO I, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of its operations and its

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Cleveland, Ohio,
January 23, 2002.
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PECO I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thowusands, except share data}
ASSETS December 31,

2001 2000

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..........c...cocoiiviiin i i $49,807 $54,920
ACCOUNtS TECEIVADIE. . ov ittt e 13,662 30,601
(130 0] L= T PSRRIt 29,523 33,282
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.............mennneenienne 1,292 1,194
Refundable and deferred income taxes.............ccviviiriiiiccninniiienn 7,918 2,805
TOtal CUITENE @SSELS. .uunvererireenrenerteriiriereenentoarramreensriesrrernmsenee 102,202 122,802

Property and equipment, at cost:

Land and land improvements..........oooivviiiniinenci e 453 453
Buildings and building improvements..............ccovrvcnnnenee 21,809 11,264
Machinery and equipment.............coo. 9,704 7,875
Furniture and fiIXTUres ........oooiiieiiiiiii et 12,099 5,943
Construction IN PrOGIESS.......cvv vt irrnieiirit e s ens 3,372 4,935
47,437 30,470

Less-accumulated depreciation................c.coooiviniiivomninneenene (7,939) (5,177)

: 39,498 25,293

Other Assets:

Restricted industrial revenue bond funds...........ccovviincvivnnicionnnns 142 ' 53
Goodwill and other intangibles, net 15,377 o 1,945
Deferred ifICOMIE tAXES.c.ciiviiiviiree e iaiitiereentrinaireieirereersnnrrnsens 2,949 - 4,053

TOtA] ASSEES ..o nirieit et e $160,168 $154,146

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Current portion of long-termdebt..............cooov i $335 $120
Capital leases payable...........c.ccuinicic i e 296 314
Accounts payable.......c.cooiiii s 7.411 12,725

Accrued cOMPENsation EXPENSE. ... ... .ccuiereererererinns e ssertosensnienie 2,973 4,554
Other accrued eXPenses........c.vvvvieiiiiiiinetnii e 9,087 5113
ACCrUEd INCOME LAXES. ... ..\ vt e et e esai e ree s et ressbbaeeaa 749 1,499

Total current liabilities........c.oivi i e s 20,851 24,325
Long-term Liabilities:
Borrowings under lines of credit............coovveieinniecseens -
Long-term debt, net of current portion..........coecvereerivennae 9,425 3,260
Capital leases payable, net of current portion 1,008 1,306
Total long-term liabilities. ... .ccoooviirini e 10,433 4,941
Shareholders' Equity:
Common shares, no par value: authorized 50,000,000 shares;
22,201,666 and 20,931,650 shares issued at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.....oooi vt 2,816 2,655
Additional paid-in capital ................oc e 111,731 99,801
Retained €aIMINGS. . ... vvueriiviieiereiiiii e e et 15,743 22,424
Treasury shares, at cost, 354,186 shares at December 31, 2001............. (1,406) -
Total shareholders' equUity.........ccocievriiernriiriiniin s 128,884 124,880
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity...........c.coo v $160,168 $154,146

375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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PECO II, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF QPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)
Years Ended December 31,

200t 2080 1999
NetSaleS....ouiite e $106,743 $156,548  $92,049
Cost of goods 50ld .....ovveiviriiiieii e 88,365 109,366 65,671 -
GrossSMargin.........ooeeeeiinreiinerieiniervenine s 18,378 47,182 26,378
Operating expenses: o
Research, development and engineering ................ 11,218 9,608 9919
Selling, general and administrative..............cccceeu. 18,836 17,160 16,557
30,054 26,768 26,476
Income (10ss) from operations..........ceeevvvenvnenncs (11,676) 20,414 98)
Interest income (expense), Net.......ccocervverirrnrceranreonan. 1.300 (164) 818
Income (loss) before income taxes....................... (10,376) 20,250 (916)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes..............coeee. __ (3.695) 8.158 (364)
Net ncome (l0S5).....cvverreririiceieeririeriinraen $(6,681)  $12,092 $(552)
Basic earnings (loss) per share.............cooveivien, $(0.31) $0.72 $(0.04)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share..................coen. $(0.3D) $0.68 $(0.04)
Weighted average common shares outstanding; ) ‘
BaSIC. .. vttt e e 21,579 16,908 13,900
Diluted.......coo i 21,579 17,876 13,900

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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PECO I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
{In thousands, except share data)

Additional
Common Shares Peid-In Retained Treasury Shares
Number Amount  Capital Earnings Number Amount Total
Balance, December 31, 1998............couee 14,207,900 $1,802 $2,845 $10,884 $15,531
Stock options exercised...........cooovn 709,150 90 2,033 2,123
Stock granted...........ccoviiiiiininnen 292,450 38 853 - 891
Stock purchases...........cocvvviiiiin (854,800) (108) (2,291} (2,399)
Stock compensation expense, net......... 11,944 ' 11,944
NEt1085.. . ceiiniiireeiiiieieiciiiee, (552) (552)
Balance, December 31, 1999................ 14,354,700 1,822 15,384 10,332 27,538
Public sale of common shares. ............ 5,750,000 729 77,594 78,323
Stock options exercised ................... 826,950 104 2,547 2,651
Stock compensation expense, net......... 4,276 4,276
NetinCome ....ovvvevriereieieininenenenn 12,092 12,092
Balance, December 31,2000................... 20,931,650 2,655 99,801 22,424 124,880
Stock options and stock purchase plans. 384,016 49 1,709 53,814 236 1,994
Issuance of stock for business
ACQUISTHION. ..veveve i 886,000 12 9,421 9,533
Purchase of treasury stock................. : . (408,000) (1,642) (1,642)
Stock compensation expense, net......... 800 800
Net 108S. ..o it eeeee e (6.681) (6,681)
Balance, December 31, 2001.................. 22,201666 _3$2816 8111731 _§15743 (354,186) _$(1.406) _$128,884

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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PECO I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 9%
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (10S8). . euvveneerennns “ $(6,681) $12,092 $(552)
Adjustments to reconcmle net income (loss) to net cash provxded by (uscd for) operatmg
activities:
Depreciation and amortization.. 3,885 1,901 1,260
Loss on disposals of property. and equxpment SO VUOIRTION 37 14 - 93
Deferred iNCOME TAXES. . ...vvvueniiiiiie e eeieiriiinree et s eecnv s s sseasaars sesnens 895 (1,088} 4.379)
Stock COMPENSALION EXPENSE. .. .. riuuiriniiirueninenrtererieretaan e riecaeceneeessmmmenes 800 4,276 11,944
Working capital changes:
ACCOUNtS TECEIVADIE. .vvviviitiiii i e et e e 22,482 (7,299) (13,403)
113110} 4 [ S O TP PP SPTPRRPPPR 4,003 (14,788) (8,506)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.. eren e (4,848) (495) (282)
Accounts payable, other accrued expenses and accrued income taxes .................... (7,016) 5,442 8,201
Accrued COMPENSAtON EXPEIISE. .ovvvr.ervreererersirsasereeereeeseerisaesesseessmnmsesenens (2,135) 48] (478)
Net cash provided by (used for) operatmg ACHVIIES. . ovevv v v ot 11,422 536 (6,102)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: ;
Capital expenditures. .....o.covvevveiniien it e eeia e ST - (17,312) (9.138) (9,365)

Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired...........ccoocoveiiiiiiiciiiininiien (5,055) - -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 20 36 25
Net cash used for investing activities (22,347) (9,102) (9,340)
CASH FLOWS FRCM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: :
Restricted cash on industrial revenue bond. . .......c.oiivvvivviiiiiieeieieiie s iaifonns (89 130 (183)
Borrowings (repayments) under lines of credit .........ccoccoviiiiiriini e, . (375) (7,995) 6,521
Borrowings of long-term debt and capital leases.........ccoveieninecniiiiniinnnennn, 6,350 - 11,450
Repayments of long-term debt and capital leases (426) (9,922) (3,021
Public sale 0f cOMMON ShArES. ... ..t e e v cererrens - 78,323 -
Proceeds from issuance of common Shares.,..........viivoivrieiniieeriiereerreenanennn 1,994 2,651 3,014
Retirement of common shares.......cococovennne . - - (2,399)
PUrchase of Ireasury ShareS........coermmmveniereearsssssssearesseesensssrsseenns (1,642) - -
Net cash provided by financing actiVities............eeviveerven svvnvenesssessiesienns 5,812 63,187 15,382
Net increase (decrease) in cash.. RN (5,113) 54,621 (60)
Cash and cash equivalents at begmnmgofpenod 54,920 299 359
Cash andcashequwalentsatendofpernod..............................‘.‘.........................‘..‘....... $49,807 $54,920 5299
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
INCOME tAXES PAIG. ... eivseeersier i et aeeee et e et e et et st seseee b asaba oo ebts srcsnans $2,178 $8,910 $4,734
Interest paid.................. 347 1,373 743
Supplemental stclosure of Noncash Investmg a.nd Fmancmg Actzvmes
Capital lease obligation incurred for leases of new equipment...... .......vuirercsmsvnirsrnanes - 3 2,030
Common shares issued in connection With aCQUISHION...cvviir e iesesneeessrenene 9,533 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements,
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PECQ Ii, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PECO 11, Inc. (the
“Company”), and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Nature of Business

The Company provides engineering and installation on-site services and designs, manufactures and
markets communications power systems and equipment and offers systems integration products and related
services for the communications industry and operates in one business segment. The products offered include
power systems, power distribution equipment, engineering and installation services, and system integration
products.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of commercial paper and state and municipal securities that are readily
convertible into cash and have original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are net of the allowanée for doubtful accounts of $768 and $657 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined by the first-in, first-out
methaod. Inventory costs consist of purchased product, internal and external manufacturing costs, and freight. -
The Company sells its products as component replacement parts or on a build to-order basis and ships to the
customer upon completion.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at.cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment
under capital leases are stated at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments at the beginning
of the lease term or fair value at the inception of the lease. Expenditures for improvements that extend the
useful life of property and equipment are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The estimated useful lives used for computing depreciation for financial statement purposes are:

Years
Land iMPrOVEIMENTS. .. o.uivititt ittt ettt ee e et e re e e e e tn et aee s ien e s 15
Buildings and building Improvements .............coiiiviiiiini e 20to0 40
Machinery and equIPMENt. .. .......c.iuiiiiiiii i et e ea e 5to 10
Furniture and fIXIUrES. .. ...oviiverei ittt 4t07
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Equipment under capital leases is amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
lease terms or the estimated useful lives of the assets. The provision for depreciation for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is $3,079, $1,792 and $1,143, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of assets acquired through
acquisition. Goodwill is being amortized from fifteen to twenty years on a straight-line basis. Costs
capitalized are shown net of accumulated amortization of $766 and $255 at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Other Accrued Expenses
Other accrued expenses at December 31, 2001 and 2000 consist of the following:

December 31,

2001 2000
AcCrued Warranty COStS......vuuerrirere rirrioireenrernieerineen $679 $1,248
Customer GepoSitS......couvvriiiiiiiiii 2,284 -
Taxes, other than iNCOME taXES.....viieiviiiriii e eerneren 1,750 806
Medical and workers compensation insurance................. - 893 1,482
Litigation accrual.......cocooveiiiiiiii 13,000 -
ORET. ..t . 48] 1,577

TOMAL. et e, _$9,087  _$5113

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements). Revenues are recognized when
customer orders are completed and shipped. Revenues on engineering and installation contracts and the costs
for services performed are recorded as the work progresses on a percentage of completion basis. Accruals for
the cost of product warranties are maintained for anticipated future claims. Sales of equipment where the
Company also performs installation are deferred until installation is complete.

Research and Product Development Costs

Expenses associated with the development of new products and changes to existing products are
charged to expense as incurred.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments held by the Company include cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts
receivable, accounts payable, borrowings under lines of credit and long-term debt. The Company does not
hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes. All financial instruments are considered to have a
fair value, which approximates carrying value at December 31, 2001 and 2000. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of trade accounts receivable. Trade
accounts receivable due from three customers at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $8,361 and $19,263,
respectively, which accounted for 61.2% and 62.9% of total accounts receivable due at these dates.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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Impact of New Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
141 (SFAS 141), “Business Combinations” and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The
statements are effective for us on January 1, 2002. These statements will result in modifications relative to
our accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets. Specifically, we will cease goodwill and certain
intangible asset amortization beginning January 1, 2002. Additionally, intangible assets including goodwill
wil] be subjected to new impairment testing criteria, Impairment charges, if any, associated with goodwill
will have to be recognized by the fourth quarter of 2002. Other than the cessation of intangible asset
amortization, we have not determined the impact of adoption on our financial statements. The current annual
run rate of amortization expense approximates $1,300.

2. Acquisitions

On June 6, 2001 the Company acquired all of the common stock of Thomton Communications Co., Inc. of
Bristol, Tennessee, a telecommunications provider of contract and engineering, furnishing and instaliation
services for approximately $13,000 of which $3,400 was cash and the remaining consideration was 886,000
shares of the Company’s common stock at $10.76 per share. Acquired intangible assets of $3,400 are being
amortized over 7 years. The investment in excess of the fair market of assets purchased of approximately
$9,000 is being amortized over 15 years.

On August 7, 2001 the Company acquired the assets of JNB Communications Inc., a South Carolina-based
provider of telecommunications installation services for $1,800. The investment in excess of the fair market
value of assets purchased of approximately $1,800 is being amortized over 15 years.

3. Inventories

Inventories are summarized as follows:

December 31
2001 2000
Rawmaterials.......ocooooiniiiii e $24297 832,123
WOTK-IN-PrOCeSS. ..\ttt v 1,490 465
Finished 800dS.........cooviiini e e 3,736 694
520523 $33282

4. Lime of Credit and Long-Term Debt

In December 2000, the Company amended and finalized an unsecured $20,000 revolving line of
credit agreement with a bank which provides for interest payable monthly at the Company’s option at either
the prime rate less 0.50%, or LIBOR plus 2%. The agreement expires on April 30, 2002, At December 31,
200] there were no borrowings under the agreement. The agreement contains covenants that include
maintaining specified financial ratios, minimum levels of net worth and limitations on capita! expenditures.
At December 31, 200] the Company was in compliance with or obtained waivers for the covenants under the
borrowing agreement.

A summary of the Company’s long-term debt outstanding is as follows:

December 31,

2001 2600
Industrial revenue bonds for $3,500 from the state of New Hampshire, due
September 2019 payable in monthly instaliments into a trust, including
IEErESt AT 18620, .. ettt iiee et ettt et e s $3,260 $3,380
Industrial revenue bonds for $6,500 from the county of Arapahoe, Colorado;
$2,000 Series A Bonds due August 2021, adjustable rate interest at 1.9%; $4,500

Series B Bonds due August 2017, adjustable rate interest at 2.15%.................. 6,500 -
] | O PO, v 9,760 3,380
Less——CUITENT POTLION 1ovviiiieeirercriries s ateeres e ieresner s e e e et r e e e e raeae e nas 335 120
59425  _53.260
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In August 2000, the Company used $14,400 in proceeds from the initial public offering, to repay its
outstanding balance under the line of credit agreement and paid off three notes payable to a bank.

Aggregate maturities of the above long term debt for each of the years in the five-year period ending
December 31, 2006 are $335, $340, $360, $375, $385, respectively, and $7,965, thereafter.

5. Commitments
The Company leases computers, machinery and office equipment under capital lease agreements that

expire through the year 2007. The amount of the capital leases included in property and equipment at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 is summarized as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000

Fumiture and eqUIPMent.........cooviniiien i $1,979  $2,592

Less-accumulated depreciation. ..............ooveveeerrnrnesiniiaersiieeeein 455 563

81524 $2,029

Future minimum payments under the capital leases are as follows:

2002 e e e et e et e e a e $379
2003 s e e 377
2004, e e e e 209
2000 e e 121
2006...... PP N 121
Thereafter.......covvviiviiiieiiiii i 389
Total minimum lease payments.............o.ovviviiiiieiiieine e 1,596
Less-amounts representing IMeTest...........ooievveievireriermierinriinneeiann.. 292
Present value of future minimum lease payments............c......oiinnnine 1,304
Less-current maturities.........ovvieiiiiiiiin 296
Long-term capital 1eases..........ccoocivrriinini $1,008

The Company has operating leases covering certain office facilities, and equipment that expire at
various dates through 2006. Future minimum annual lease payments required during the years ending in
2002 through 2006 under noncancelable operating leases having an original term of more than one year are
$492, $334, $231, $103, and $29, respectively. Aggregate rental expense on noncancelable operating leases
for the years ended in 2001, 2000 and 1999 approximated $563, $399, and $420 respectively.

6. Contingencies

The Company is a party to several legal proceedings and litigation, which have arisen in the ordinary
course of business. Although the outcome of such items cannot be determined with certainty, management
believes the amount of additional costs in excess of accruals should not materially affect the financial position
or results of operations of the Company.

The Company has adopted a self-funded employee benefit plan for employee health care coverage.
The Company obtains stop-loss coverage from an insurance carrier to limit its liability.

7. Stock Option Plans

In June 2000, the 2000 Performance Plan was adopted and approved by our shareholders for the
issuance of up to 2,500,000 common shares. In addition the Company has two nonqualified stock option
plans for employees, which each reserve 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s stock for issuance under the
Plans. These Plans provide for awarding stock options to employees and contain provisions under which
employees may be granted stock options in lieu of a portion of their compensation, subject to the discretion of
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Options are granted at the fair market value of the
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Company’s common stock at the date of grant, generally vest over three to four years, and must be exercised
within five years from the grant date. .

Prior to the completion of the initial public offering, the Company allowed the employees to receive
the net proceeds from the exercise of the options in cash, in lieu of stock. Concurrent with the initial public
offering, the cash option was terminated. Accordingly, the Plans are considered compensatory up to the
initial public offering and compensation expense related to the increase in value of the options was recorded
as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000 - 1999
Cost of Goods Sold...........c.oveiiiiiiein, S126 $2%6 $541
Research, Development and Engineering.... 71 171 338
Selling, General and Administrative ......... _196 475 473

8393 3942 81352

The Company has recorded additional compensation expense with a corresponding increase to
additional paid-in capital for all unexercised stock options and shares issued to a director and certain
employees. The expense represents the options valued at the offering price in excess of the value of the shares
pursuant to the Company’s repurchase obligation. Total compensation expense was recorded as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000
Costof Goods Sold...........c.oooiiiiniiiiiiieeeee, $266 $646
Research, Development and Engineering.......... e 149 367
Selling, General and Administrative................ - 415 1,125

—_5830  _$2,138

Information relating to the Company’s outstanding option plans is as follows:

Weighted
Total Average
Options Onption Price Optien Price

Shares under option at December 31, 1998............... 2,089,400 $0.30-2.60 $0.95
Granted.........coviieiii 438,800 2.60-3.10 2.80
Forfeited/canceled................c.ocoeeeiinnn (228,750) 0.30-2.20 0.72
Exercised.....ooveieiiiii (709,150) 0.30-2.20 0.52
Shares under option at December 31, 1999............... 1,590,300 0.60-3.10 1.69
Granted........cocorvevereriiriiee e 985,854 15.00-20.125 15.66
Forfeited/canceled..........c..coeveviiininnninnnn, (81,800) 0.60-15.00 5.67
EXercised......ooovivivineii i i (826.950) 0.60-3.10 1.22
Shares under option at December 31, 2000............... 1,667,404 0.60-20.125 2.67
Granted.......oviviiiiei i 383,602 6.35-18.00 8.15
Forfeited/canceled.....................oovennne, (144,899) 0.94-20.125 6.71
Exercised.........ooovveriiiiiee e, (286,500) 0.60-15.00 2.77
Shares under option at December 31,2001............... __1.619,607 0.94-20.125 1112
Options exercisable at December 31, 2001............... __ 597,150 0.94-20.125 9.87

30




The Company has elected to use the disclosure only method of complying with SFAS No, 123,
** Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation’’. The fair value of each option granted under the Company’s
Plans are estimated as of the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions used for stock options granted in fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively: dividend yield of 0%, expected volatility of 95.23%, 71.60% and 70.61%, risk-free interest rates
of 4.23%, 6.23% and 5.74%, and an expected life of the options of 2.2 years for 2001, 2.4 years for 2000 and
4 years for 1999. The weighted average fair value on the date of grant for options granted during ﬁscal years
2001, 2000 and 1999 were §11.97, $22.94 and $4.40, respectively.

If the Company had elected to recognize the compensation cost of its Plans based on the fair value of
all awards under the plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123, fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999 pro forma net
income (loss) and pro forma net income (loss) per common share would have been as follows:

2001 2006 1999

NET INCOME (LOSS):
ASTEPOTted. .. ocvuciniiieeei e e $(6,681) $12,092 $(552)
Pro fOrma......covvneeiieie e ireecrre i (8,233) 9,976 (804)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic-
ASTEPOtEd. ...t $(0.31) $0.72  $(0.04)
Proforma.......coovciiiiiiiirnci e $(0.38) $0.59  3(0.06)
Diluted- ’
ASTEPOTEA. ....vevvveei i $(0.31) $0.68  3(0.04)
Proforma....coccveieiiiei e $(0.38) $0.56  $(0.06)

8. Imployee Benefit Plans

The Company has a 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan. Under the Plan, eligible employees, as defined, may
contribute up to 15% of their compensation subject to certain limitations. In addition, the Company may
make contributions to the Plan at the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.
No contributions were made by the Company in 2001, 2000 and 1999.

In April 2001 the shareholders approved the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and reserved
for issuance an aggregate of one million common shares. The Plan allows eligible employees to purchase
common shares through payroll deductions, at prices equal to 85% of fair market value on the first or last
business day of the offering period, whichever is lower. The Plan will terminate when all or substantially all
of the common shares reserved for purposes of the plan have been purchased. To date, 151,330 shares have
been issued under the plan and 848,670 shares were available for future issuance.

9. Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the provisions of SFAS No. 109 (“Accounting For
Income Taxes”). Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences in future years of differences between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts. The components of the provision
(benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Current tax expense:
Federal.......oooveriiiiiiniie e $(3,025) $5,796  $3415
SHALE. .. e 225 1.274 600
Total current. ......oveivvici e (2.800) 7.070 4,015
Deferred tax expense:
FEARTAL .. veeee oot (670) 930  (3,719)
] 2 PP ORT YN (225) 158 {660}
Total deferred........oovvevieniiiiiiiiiecen e {895) 1.088  (4.379)
Total provision (benefit} for income taxes.......... _$(3,695) _$8.158 _$(364)
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory and effective income tax for the years ended December 31,
follows:

2001 2000 1999

Income (loss) before income taxes..........vevvvvvnvvinreninicrinnss $(10376) $20,250 $0918)
Federal Statutory taXeS......oovvviriiiieininieininiieicraisenae e $(3,528) $6,885  $(311)
State taxes and other (net of federal benefit)......................... (167) 1.273 {53)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes..............cccoeiveinennien. $(3,695) _88,158 _§(364)
Effective income tax (benefit) rate...........oooeviviinniiniiennenn, (35.6)%  40.3% (39.7%
A detailed summary of the total deferred tax assets and liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets at December 31 resulting from differences in the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities
follows:
2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued COMPENSAtION. .......o.uiviueieneriariieeriee e iniaieinanens $4,862 $5,766
ACCIUEd EXPEISES. ... vvirieirierniiienter i v 446 764
Inventory......... S S P 1,116 785
Warranty cCr0aL ....o.veeinin i e, 272 499
Litigation accrual.........ooooviiiniiiiinin 1,200 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts..............ocoeeviini il 307 263
076411 O N 776 47
Total deferred faX ASS8TS .. uveuirnreiieeeriie i areiee e e 8979 8.124
Deferred tax liabilities:
DePreciation. ... .ccvvieriiiiiti e 1,779 1,258
Purchase accounting liabilities...............cocooviiiiinnn 1,197 -
Other. e e 40 8
Total deferred tax labilities. ..o e 3016 1.266
Net deferred tax asSel..........coeiieiriiiiniiiieieiieavieeraeaennes $5,963 $6,858

The Company periodically reviews the need for a valuation allowance against certain deferred tax
assets and recognizes these assets to the extent that realization is more likely than not. Based on a review of
earnings history and trends and forecasted earnings, a valuation allowance is currently not required for
deferred tax assets.

10. Treasury Shares

In September 2001 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to ! million shares of the
Company’s common shares in the open market or in private transactions. Repurchased shares are being used
for the issuance of shares in connection with the employee stock option and stock purchase plans. To date we
have purchased 408,000 shares at a cost of $1,642.

11. Significant Customers

Sales to the top three customers amounted to $30,547, $15,973 and $10,820 and comprised
approximately 29%, 15% and 10%, respectively, of consolidated net sales for 2001,

Sales to the top three customers amounted to $31,031, $26,708 and $22,396 and comprised
approximately 20%, 17% and 14%, respectively, of consolidated net sales for 2000.

Sales to the top three customers amounted to $18,813, $14,791 and $9,084 and comprised
approximately 20%, 16% and 10%, respectively, of consolidated net sales for 1999,

There were no other customers individually comprising more than 10% of consolidated net sales.




18. Quarterly Results of Operations-(Unaudited)

The following table shows unaudited quarterly results of operations for the period indicated. We
have prepared this quarterly information on a basis consistent with the audited consolidated financial
statements and management believes it includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of the information shown.

Statement of Operations Data:
Netsales.........cco.oviiviinnns
Costof good sold................
Gross margin..........coceeveenes
Operating expenses:
Research, development and
engineering...............
Selling, genera) and
administrative............

Income (loss) from operations.
Interest income (expense), net
Income (loss) before income

Net income (10SS).......covvvuis
Basic earnings (loss) per

Weighted average common
shares outstanding:

Quarters Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, ~ Mareh 31, Jume 30, Sept. 30, Dez 31,

2000 2086 2000 2000 2601 2001 2001 2001

(In thousands except per share data)

$34,964 $39,271 $40,065 $42,248 $34,856 $25,794 823,110 §22,98:
23 836 27,613 27984 29.933 24251 22,225 21,317 _20.57%
11,128 11,658 12,081 12,315 10,605 3,569 1,793 2,411
2,566 2,407 2,339 2,296 2,340 2,832 3,217 2,82¢
4.176 4487 4,334 4,1 63 4,449 4,505 4,921 4,961
6,742 6.394 6.673 6,459 6,789 7.337 8,138 7.79¢
4,386 4,764 5,408 5,856, 3,816 (3,768) (6,345) (5,379
(429) (396) 30 61 l 584 . 384 206 12€
3,957 4,368 5,458 6,46? 4,400 (3,384) (6,139) (5,253,
1,583 1,748 2237 2,590 1739 (1337) _ _(2425) (1672
~$2374  $2620 83221 33877  _ 52661 2047y _3$(3.714) 3G.58L
£0.16 £0.18 $0.18 $0.15  $0.13 $(0.10) $(0.17)  8(0.16;
$0.15 80.17 $0.17 $0.18 $0.12 $(0.10) 8$0.17)  $(0.16;
14,466 14,741 17,552 20,904 20,977 21,376 22,131 21,816
15,625 18,618 21,911 21,458 21,376 22,131 21,816

15,607

ITEM 9 - CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS GN ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None

33




PART IIT
ITEM 10 - DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The information appearing under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy statement relating to our 2002 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, to be held on April 25, 2002 (the*2002 Proxy Statement™), is incorporated herein by reference.
Information regarding our executive officers is included in Part | of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 11 - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Board of Directors Meetings
and Committees” and “Executive Compensation” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12 - SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to “Share Ownership of
Principal Holders and Management” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13 - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIFS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to “Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions” in the 2002 Proxy Statement.

PART IV

ITEM 14- EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM §K
The following documents are filed as part of this report:
(a) (1) Financial Statements — See Index to Financial Statements at Item 8 of this report.
(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts - See page S-1 of this report.
(a) (3) Exhibits.

See the “Exhibit Index” at page E-1 of this Form 10-K.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

None
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

March 11,2002

PECO 11, Inc.
By: /s/_JOHN C. MAAG
John C. Maag
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Stgrature

/s/_ MATTHEW P. SMITH

Matthew P. Smith

/s/_JOHN C. MAAG

John C. Maag

/s/ SANDRA A. FRANKHOUSE

* Sandra A. Frankhouse

{s/_JAMES L. GREEN

James L. Green

{s{ LUCILLE GARBER FORD

Lucille Garber Ford

/s/ E. RICHARD HOTTENROTH

E. Richard Hottenroth

fs/ TRYGVE A, IVESDAL,

Trygve A. Ivesdal

/s/ EUGENE V. SMITH

Eugene V. Smith

/sf CHARLES D. TAYLOR

Charles D. Taylor

Title

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer

{Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) -

Secretary and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

35

Date

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002

March 11, 2002
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PECO II, INC,

SCHEDULE Ii - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
{In thousands)

Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning of  Costs and at End of
Period Expenses.  Write-offs Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 1999................ $153 $264 $65 $352
Year ended December 31,2000................ 352 413 108 657
Year ended December 31, 2001................. 657 310 199 768
Accrued warranty costs:
Year ended December 31, 1999................ $181 $1,609 3665 $1,125
Year ended December 31,2000................ 1,125 1,047 924 1,248
Year ended December 31, 2001................. 1,248 190 759 679
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhilbit
No. Deseription
3.1 4) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company..................... (A)
3.1 (ii) Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of the Company................o.oevne (A)
4.1 Specimen certificate for the common shares, without par value, of the Company... (A)
10.1.1 Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of
October 22, 1999, between PECO 11, Inc. and The Huntington National Bank ...  (A)
10.1.2 First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2000, between PECO 1, Inc. and The National
Huntington Bank.........coiiii e e (A)
10.1.3 Second Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2000, between PECO 11, Inc. and The
Huntington National Bank............coocoiiiiimiiiiniii e (B)
10.2.1 Loan Agreement, dated September 1, 1999, between Apex Telecommunications
Manufacturing, Inc. and Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire. .. oo (A)
10.2.2 Trust Indenture, dated September 1, 1999, between The Huntington National
Bank and Business Finance Authority of State of New Hampshire................... (A)
10.2.3 Reimbursement Agreement, dated September 1, 1999,-between Apex
Telecommunications Manufacturing, In¢. and The Huntington National Bank.... (A)
10.3.1 Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2001, between PECO I, Inc. and the
County of Arapahoe, Colorado............vcoviiiiiii i, ©

10.3.2 Bond Purchase Agreement, dated August 8, 2001, among PECO 1i, Inc., The
Huntington National Bank, Huntington Capital Corp. and the County of

Arapahoe, Colorado..............oiiin i et e (9]
10.3.3 Trust Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2001, between The Huntington National
Bank and the County of Arapahoe, Colorado...........ocoiveiiiiiiniiinnin <)
1034 Reimbursement Agreement, dated August 1, 2001, between PECO II, Inc. and
The Huntington National Bank..............cooviiiiiiiiii {(®)
*10.4 Amended and Restated 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan of the Company...  (A)
*10.5 Amended and Restated 1997 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan of the Company... (A)
*10.6 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Amended and Restated 1995 Non-Qualified
Stock Option Plan of the Company and Amended and Restated 1997 Non-
Qualified Stock Option Plan of the Company...........cccoveniiiiiiiniiic i, (A)
*10.7 2000 Performance Plan of the Company..........c.ovveriviininiinnre i innes (A)
*10.8 Form of Stock Option Agreement for 2000 Performance Plan of the Company... (A)
*10.9 Form of Indemmification AZreement... ......cccevvvveniiriinivmnerireeeriinrenienensaes (A)
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company............cooeoiviiiii
231 Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP...........oooiiiii e

*  Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement identified pursuant to Item 14 (¢) of
this Form 10-K.

(A) Incorporated by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-37566) and the amendments thereto.

(B) Incorporated by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 and filed on March 19, 2001,

(C) Incorporated by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001 and filed on November 5, 2001.
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Letter to Shareholders

Business Outlock

While we continue with necessary short-range plans to avoid unnecessary
costs, we remain firm in our investment strategies to maintain and
enhance our momentum. We are confident that PECO Il has the financial
stability to operate in the current environment, even if these conditions
persist for some time. We believe the fundamental business drivers
remain attractive for investors in the communications infrastructure
market and that our Company is properly positioned to continue its
growth and profitability when the recovery occurs. As always, we strive to
earn your confidence, and we look forward to enhancing shareholder
value in the coming year and beyond.

Sincerely,

[

Matthew P.Smith
Chairman of the Board & CEQ

Allen Jay Cizner
President & COO
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In the past, PECO Il's service departments have focused
on engineering systems for customers and repairing
existing product. The focus has shifted this year, and
the available services that PECO |l offers has expanded
dramatically.

The acquisition of Thornton Communications was a
step we took to increase the services we offer to our
customers. First established with a focus on the
installation and support of DC power systems,
Thornton has grown to provide contract engineering,
installation, maintenance and surveillance services,
and turnkey E&I projects spanning nearly the entire
spectrum of telecommunications. Some exciting new
services they add to PECO Ii's assortment include
.experience with switching and transmission

equipment, and their staff of contract personnel to
assist on-site.

The next step of increasing PECO lI's service offering is
to implement our unique maintenance agreements.
These will be tailored to each customer’s specific
needs, and will allow them to choose from options
such as grounding evaluations, infrared scanner
checks, battery data services, preventive maintenance
(PM) services, extended warranties, and documented
maintenance reports.

Our services team is also concentrating on other OEM
branded products. By the end of 2002, we hope to be
well established as a services provider to the
telecommunications industry, regardless of the
equipment manufacturer.




Early in 2001, production in Galion, Ohio moved into
the new 144,000 square-foot addition. This relocation
has improved efficiency, allowing more space for
operations and organization. The capabilities of the
Worthington production facility were consolidated
into the Galion plant midyear, allowing the same PECO
Il quality standards to be applied to their product.

Late in 2001, manufacturing and engineering were
reorganized into teams. Looking forward, this move
will allow for greater consistency within the product
lines and will increase communication between
engineering and manufacturing. Production staff will
become more involved with the design of the
product, and this greater understanding will increase
quality and reduce manufacturing time. Also joining
the move into teams were order entry personnel,
material planners, buyers, quality control and test.

In 2001, we installed SynQuest, a new advanced
business planning system. During the coming year,

we will use the new system in conjunction with our
current ERP system to carry out integrated supply
chain management planning and execution. Also in
2001 we invested in a Siebel system to automate and
aid us in forecasting customer needs. This will allow
us to quickly respond to customer needs with the
least possible inventory.

Currently, many products at PECO Il are undergoing the
“Design for Manufacture,” or DFM, process. This
method of redesign is an approach that aims at
improving manufacturing productivity and reducing
cost, while building a better product. It is a method of
action that encourages teamwork, keeps a focus
on clear and common objectives, encourages
problem ownership, and prevents problems from
being shifted from area to area. The goal is for
all of our products to go through the DFM
process, increasing our competitiveness without
capital investment,
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2001 R&D “What we have done”
+ Developed and placed into production the new expandable
DC power plant, known as the “163" _
> Developed and placed into production new 6 KVA rectifiers
with either a 220 or 480 VAC input
» Developed a new hardware and software “Plug-N-Play”
solution for expandable power plants
« Introduced first products with an aesthetic and functional appearance

2002 R&D “What we are doing”
»  Continuing the employment of non-PECO Il equipment and developing
the interface with our systems
»  Exploring new cost effective power conversion solutions
+ Exploring new alternative energy sources
* Developing new communications standards

2002 R&D “Where we are going”
¢ Increased focus on systems
+ Power solutions, not just PECO i boxes
+  Power and facility monitoring solutions
= Systems for the global marketplace

Modular DT Pawer Plant




Corporate Information
Corporate Headquarters

PECO I, Inc.

1376 State Route 598

Galion, Ohio 44833-0910 USA
{419) 468-7600 Fax: (419) 468-1587

Principal Facilities

Galion Ohio Operations Center
{419) 468-7600

Fax (419) 468-1587

Bristol Tennessee Service Center
(423) 274-8300
Fax (888) 274-8319

Denver Service Center
(303) 636-4000
Fax (303) 302-2820

Atlanta Service Center
(770) 421-3150
Fax (888) 293-5455

Dallas Texas Service Center
(214} 355-2040
Fax (214) 341-6756

Nashua New Hampshire
Operations Center

(603) 598-7077

Fax (603) 598-6322

Worthington Ohio R&D Center
{614) 431-0694
Fax (614) 431-0668

Telecom Global Services
de Mexico, S.A.de C.V.
52 (6) 213-54-10

Stock Exchange

Shares of PECO Il,Inc.common stock are
traded on the Nasdaq National Market
under the listing "Plil",

Transfer Agent and Registrar
National City Bank

Dept. 3116

Corporate Trust Administration
629 Euclid Avenue ~ Room 635
Cleveland Ohio 44114

(800) 662-6757

Independent Auditors
Arthur Andersen LLP

200 Public Square * Suite 1800
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

(216) 781-2140

Fax (216) 781-3683

Legal Counsel

Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP

1400 McDonald Investment Center
800 Superior Avenue

Cleveland, Ohio 44114-2688

(216) 622-8200

Fax (216) 241-0816

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders
will take place April 25,2002 at 9:00 a.m.
at the St. Joseph’s Activity Center, 135
North Liberty Street, Galion, Ohio.

Form 10-K i

PECO I, Inc. Form 10-K filed with

Securities and Exchange Commission
for the year ended December 31,2001,
is available to shareholders upon
written request to the Investor
Relations Department at the corporate
headquarters or by visiting our World
Wide Web site at www.peco2.com.

Investor Relations

Investors requesting financial information
or with questions about PECO 1}, Inc. may
contact:

John C. Maag, Chief Financial Officer at
the Company’s corporate headquarters.

Internet

Information on PECO 1), Inc. is available
at our World Wide Web sit at the follow-
ing address: www.peco2.com,
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